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Mr. Joar What was your answaer?

, @ .
A [ never k wew as many as tried 10 registor this suniaer.

Mr. Duar: Itave there ever beer 23 . anv peoy le encouraging

Neprocs ty re lsier és there have by n his anauner ?

Mr, Bits Objection, .
: .

Julge Thowa- O erruled.

Mr. Pitts Exceptica,

A There have 1ot

Mr. Dioir: What?

A

I: has be~n nore this summcer than l ever knew befere

(Mr. Duar coatinuing) As a matter of facy, there hal beer

Q

katdly zry rlerest in registration activity anzong Negraoe .
until this summer ? o .
A That as vight
Mr. Pittir OLjedtion,
Julge 1Thomas: Overruled.

Mr. Pitis- Fxeopho,

vour Henor, she will nut wait to answuer until 1 can

Mr. Pitts:
get my ohjection aa

fadge Thor a=: Daa’t arswer vatil he has a chance 1o ebject and then

wait unti! I rale o1 his objectinn, please.

Mr, Doar: Who touk this a'fidavit from PRaE Mrs. Siith?
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A Parsdon?

Q (Mr, Doar contirmanyg) Wha; tock thas afficavit fram you that
vou signed v o the T'ah of July ?

A Sheriff Ciark Yot said the affidavie?

Q The affidtavi’ what you signed? D you know who wrote that
A nen? How did you happen to sign that affidavit?

A MNow, Tam trying r sec whicio was the affidavit

Judge Thomas: The affidavit of Jaly 19t: 12637

Mr. Dear. This s the affidavit you signed here, Tiake your
ti ne.

A Sucriff Clark,

Q (Mr. Doar continuiag) Woat happencd wheio e came cut ant

toh that affidavit?

lie told e that this coul? lae used in Court,

A
Q Did he ask yon wasther or not vou knew Bernard Lifayette?
A He didd oot
Q 173 he ash yuu whether or not any Negroes were afraid
rogiiter !
. P s .
N, Pittee Oujecticon. - .

Juidge Tho vazs Custanel

Mr. [Dar: Exception.
M. Doar In vears affidaviiy, you Lave statelt here that yeu

do not kriew of any other parson who has been threatened or

e A,




oA

A Iineant ¢u the day,

abused because of their desire to Tegister, Do you remomber
sayin, that? |

A Idid,

Q (Mr. Duar continuing) What did Y24 mean by that?

Mr, Pius: Objaction to what she means by the statcment.
The statenmert is in the English langhage. I object to any
questicn a- to what a person means by scrncihing. That is
ca'liug for a mental operation,

Judge Thurnas: Will you all just make your objections and let me
rule on them?  Sustained.

Mr, Doar; Exception. .

Mr, Doar: When you said that you dil not know of any person
who had been threatened oz abused, because of their desire

to register, were you talking only of what happcned on the day

yOu went up to register?
A Yes, sir.
Mr, Pitts: Objection.

Julge Thomas, Sustained,

Mr, Doar: Exception,
4

Mr, Doar; Your Honor; I would like to ask permission to son-

tinue this examination under Rule 43 ().

39
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Judge Thomas: What is that?

Mr, Doar- '-l’ha! rule p:'u“.'ides that where the Court
sustains an objectu;n in the trial of a casc¢ where there
is no jury that the Court will take the testimony subject

to the objection, fur the purposc of a full record being

made, ‘ .
Judge Thomas: T am not gouing into that, .
Mr, Doar: Thaik you. Exception

Judge Thomas' Is there any Re Direct?

Mr. Madison® Your Honor, we Lave sevcral defendants and’several
lawyers representiug ditfferent ones. Would you miind outlicing
who can ask questions and the order, s0 that we may observe

it?

- Judge Thomas: Yo'r all ought to be able to straighten that out

among yourselves, There is nothing crvmplicated avout
that. . '

Mr. Madison. I thick it is rather complicated., We jump up three
at a tirne and you say %3it down' three at a time,

Judyge Thowias: To ahead, Mr, Pitts,

Mr. Pitts: It is mv understanding that cach ore of us has the

right to examine cach witness, representing different ones,

Judyge Thomas: That is correst .

40

hao s,

e




b

oy

il st

. Judge Thomas® [ du-want this in the record

0O » O > D » L

C > L > D »

There are 3everal

Defendants., During the testimony .n the case, any objection

made to any of the iestimony by any Duefundaat, lat the record g
show that 1t will be considered that it is being made by all the
Defendan:s aunl the ruling will apnly to each onc. All right, Mr.
Pitts. .

RE DIRECT EXAMIVA';'ION

By Mr, Pirts
Do you know Zheriif Jim Clark?

4

1 know hun,

Do you sce him in this Court room?

r—————

1 see kina, )
Is that hin: sitting rieht back yonder? *
That i ri k.
1s he the man that came out therc and gut you to .sign that.

' !
affidavit? » i :

F

Yes, sir, ¥
Are yau pouitive of that? 4
1 am. He did, . i

Do you know a ‘nan named Judd Eruest Houston, denuty ‘sheriff?

Yes, sir,

He is a deputy sheriff, is he not? . i

Bar e 4 o e iel

i ited ot
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A Yes, sir.

Q He was a deputy sheriff, was he,o0t?

A Yes, sir.

Q He was there, was he not?

A That 1s right,

Q The n.an that actually took this afiidavit {ro.q you was a
man that didn’t have on any uniform at all and was Aressed
just like [ am, znd his mame was Dic:k'rrson?

Mr. Doar: Objectian. He is copss examuuaag his own witness .

Judge Thonias: [ think you are correct. Sustained,
*

Mr. Pitts, Exception,

Mr. Patts: Do you know Mr, Dickerson, a state'nwestxga(or?

A Do 1 know him?

Q (Mr. Pitts continuing) Yes? .
A I know himn.
Q Did he Lave on clothes like I have ?
s
A Yes.
Q s he the cue that wrote this thing out?
A Sheriff Clark and his deputy came ont,
Q You mean Sheriff Clark wrote this thiag vut here?
A fHe a0 his deputy,

Judge Thomus  Letrre a:F the vitness one questicn, When Ciis
]
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A

affijavit was rigned by you, were there more tha one
person that ¢ame out there ?

Itwas rwo,

Judge Thom:as, Who vias 11 ?

A

Sheriff Clark and Mr. Houston,

Judge Thoras: O, k.,

Mr, Patts- Mr., wickerson was not thege? 1Is Air Dickerson

cC > D % p »

out there ?

I am pettiag consused now,

(Mr. Pitts continuinz) That is what ] know.

Iduen’t want to get confused.

Is tLat the ruan that was out there?

You are Mr, Dickerson, am 1 right, can I ask that question?
Is that the nmian that was out there that was with Sheriff
Clark? [ ain just asking ou now? s that kit ?

I believe 1t is, )

All right.

1 b=licve that is the one

All right, now, actually, Mr. Jim Clark was not even there,

+3

was he? You are mmittaken about that. Only Mr. Houston and

L]
Mr. Dickerson were therc, 1 am asking you nsw? . :

Sheriff Clark was there,




1 Q When you signed this affidavit, was Sheritf Ciark there ?
Judge Thomasg: Let me ask you this® To the best of your recollection,

who was there when you signed the affidavit, if you recail. That

ik

is all we want to know, .

A To the best of my recollection, it wassSher:ff Clark, a;xd, 1f
this was Mr. Dickerson that walked in here now, I say those
are the two, to the hest of my recollecd on,

Judge Thomas: That is all I want to know,

M.r. Pitta: That is all.

Judge Thomas: Mr., McLeod, do you want tv ask her any questions?

Mr. McLeod: No, sir.

._..L_A..mih_n_l "

Judge Thorcas: Mr. Madison, do you want to ask her any quesuons?

Mr. Madisoo; Yes, sir.

PO RSP TArS

RE DIHRECT EXAMINATION |
By Mr, Madison
Do you recall the day that you were registered”

I dn.

All right, werc there other people there?
vl

1 was alone,

By yourself?

That is right,

Was avybody else in line at all?

> D » L ® D > D

There was no line,
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Did you Lave any trouble going in before the registratios,

.

boari?

I dida't have anv trogble gving in, since there was no

L
line.

Y>u got rigiit on i ?
Idud,
Nov., vou rald you knew a Negro boy by the name of Alexander

.

Brown. Is that the same one they call Love?
Am I a Negro hoy ?

No, you =aid vou knew a Negro boy named Brown?
. :

That is right,

Do you kaow hir under the name of Love, tuo?

All I kacw was Browa, |

What was the other ane vou 3aid you knew, the name cf the

other oae that was arrested for vagrancy there?

Reese.

Bosic Recse was arrested for something else, was he pot?
Something ¢lse?

Yes?

Idon't know,

of them to come to you and talk to you

Have you had ary

about geing to the courthouse to register?
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I have heard them talk,
Had you heard them talk before you weat up there to register ?

Before ] went up, now, I have heard talk, because it was just

>

everywhere,

Before you went to register ?

o]

I had heard i,

Had you attended meetings?

I had not attended aay meeting.

Had you talked to Brown?

I had nor talked to Brown.

Who did talk to vou about going to ragister?
I talked with different friends,

You talked with different friends ?

That is right. [ listencd to the Presiisnt,

O > D > D > D % p »

Did you't.alk to Ln yon ¢ you knew wns‘ out of the state of Alalaria
or Dallas Ceusty ? Did you talk to aayone who was out of Pa.las
County? -

A They ;vert- all living in Dallas €ounty

All you talke i tv were living in Dallas Ccuniy?

That is right.

You went on up and registered?

> LB > DO

Trat is right.

A e




> £ > D

Q

A

47

What 4id you ds. after you registered” .
Wlhat did I do, after | registered?
Yes?
1 went on howme and waited until got 3 hearing.
RE DIRECT EXAMINATION
By Mr. Gayle
That affidaviz that vou gave, thatis trae, 1s it not, the
afiidavit that you gave, when you talked to Mr. Clark?
It is true.
Yeou arce not denying that today at all, arce you?
I am not denying it.
Yuu swore to it?

I dai,
L J

Judge Thoymas: She said it was true.

Mr. Gayle: It is truc?
A Yes, sir.
Judge Themis: Thank you very much. You may go, if you like ~ .
.
.
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ALLXANDER BROWN, being tirst duly swarn to
#peak the truth. the whole truth, and nothing but the truth,
tostified as follows: |
CRO53 EXAMINATION
By Mr. Doar
Q Will you speak up 11 a loud voice sv that cveryone.can
hear yeu? Kecep vour hands away {foin your face, ao your
vuices cones out load and ¢lear, You testilid herv before
at the last hcaring?
Yes, sir,
Q Subseque.t to e last hearing did yo1 appear in the state

court on the charge of cunceaiiag your identity, changing

your Lame?

A 1 did.

Q How did you pleal to that charge?

A Not guiliy.

Q How did the Court find?

Mr,. Pitts: Objection. The court's :ecord is the best evidence.

Judge Thomzs: Sustained,

Mr. Doar: - Exceptidn.
Mr, Doar. At that hearing, did Sheriff Clark testify?
A He di.l.

43
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Q (Mr. Doar contiruing) Did you testify ? N

A Idid,

Q Did you testify to substaatially the same facts as YOu testie
fied while yoy were here in CuurtAin July ?

Mr, Patts: Objection, as incompetent, immaterial anld irrele-
vant,

Judge Thomas; When did this trial take place?

Mr., Pitts; It took place sarme time after this Court inet, after
July 25th. : s

Mr. Doar: August Lst, your Honor.

Mr. Piutse About a week after the trial.

sudge Thomnas, The question is did you testily to substantially the
vame facts as you testified while you were here in Court in
July. Is that correct?

NMr. Doar: Yes, your Henor, .

Judge Thomas: What is the purpose of this Mr. Doar?

Mr, Duar: ‘Thc¢ purposa. your Houor, is to show tn the Court
wha® ¢k place in the State Cou.rt. in the case of Alabama vs.
Brown, and show the testimory was the same as it was up here,
znd then to offer the docket record.as to what the State Court di-l.

Judge ihomas: As to whether there was acquitial or conviction?

Mr, Doar; Yes, sir. Ihave the docket record here, your Honar,

-
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I wan: to ask Lini who was the prosccuting attorney, to show

that these Defondants continued on with that case after hearing

the testi:ncny here on July 25th,
Mr. Pitts. It was after this July 25.h hearing, the date this Gourt

was in dession, ad we object to it on that ground. The convict-

“

ion is the test eviadence.
Sudge Thoatas: L'am gowng to take a few minutes recess.
Thereupon, a short recess was Lad,
Thereafter, Court re-convened, and the following tranupired:
.
Juarige Thomas: You were tried on this arrest about which yi)u testified

back in July in this case, is that right?

A Yes, thatis right.
1 ]
Judge Thomas: Iam not going to re-try that case. He has tesufied

that he was tried. 1 am not goigg W re-try that case. H. has

testificd that he was tried, 1 ar nct going into the testirmony;

but I will admit, over the objection of the Defendants, the proper

document showing the outcu:ne of that trial.
Mr. M‘adison: 1 would li*e the record to show that for \:'hut hu was
arrested for, he came in with ccunsel and plead Guilty toat.
In the charge that was put against him for having two names; he
The

was tried on that, and the Court cleared him of that charge

original charge that he was arreusted for, he plead Guilty to.

Lt a A
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Judge Thomas: What was that?

Mr. Madison: ‘Traific vivlation, not having lights.

Judge Thommas: You were originally arrested for not hav.ing lights ?

A Yes, sir. .

Judge Thumsas: Did vou appe:;r in Court?

A 1 appe;xred in Court, butl knew nothing of pleading Not Cuilty,

fudge Thomas. Did you plea:l Guile;?

A 1 didn't aiake a plea in that particular case,

Judge Thomas: 1 ar: not going into the ditails, Put into the record
bothh cases, but !l am not going to }e»tr) it

;dr. Pitts: We can gut in the record in both cases, hec’ause he did
enter a plea of Guilty,

.h:Jg-.- Thomas: I ju-t said put in the record on both cases. Iam not
going to re~try either une of them,

Mr, Doar. In connecion with the case of concealing your identity;

going under a false name, did Mr. McLeod prusccute that casc
in the state court?

A He did,

Judge Thomas® Do you have a certified copy?

Mr, Joar: I do. ¢

Judge Thonmase Hand it to the clerk.

Thereupon, the dacuiaent as to changing name or concealing ideniity

L3




52

was marked Plaintiff Exhibit 48, 4
4
Thercupon, the ducument as to :'mpioper lights was markad
Plaiatiff £xhibit 49,
4
Judge Thomas. Is there anything else of this witness ?
Mr. Dour; Nothing elsc. I would like ) offer these in evidence,

Judge Thomas: They are ia,
Judge Thomas: Is there any Re Direct?
Mr. McLeud: No questions, your Hounor,

Judge Thomas: Step down, please,

SOLOMON S, SEAY, Jr., being first sworn te speak
the truth, the whalc truth, and nothing but the trutn, testified as
. .
follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

By Mr. Doar -

Q Will you tell the Court your full Lame, please?

Y-
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Holognon 5, Scay, Jr. . -
Mr. Secay, where do vou live ?

Mottt ciaery, Alabaraa,

Whnat is your uc.cupa;‘i wr?

Atturney ot law,

Are vou admitied W practics ow in the 3tate courts of
Alabama?

Yes, sir,

Are you alritied to practice law in the Federal Caurt

in Alabama? .

Yes. Tam:.

Mr. seay, how Loy hicve: you Leea practicing las. in Alabaina.
Sirce August 1957 .

Did ¥2u, in tie sununer of 1963, represent ia the Couus,
Cauri of Dallas C‘);:nzy, Alalama, allegrs mas by the v
of B-raard Lafayetts?

Lail.

Did youf reprascnt i in counection wi'k th- crinisal caarze
H

of vasrancy ?
1 did,

Did you know Bernar ! Lajaysfte pricr to the time you woere

cngaged to represent aim?

NG v
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A Yes. sie, Idid.

Q How leng had you Fauown him? N

A 1 had known Lafavette since 1960 or 1961 ’

Q Did you know that ke had been working in Dallas County since -
Mr. Pirtts: We object to Lim leading this witness,

Judge Thomas. Don't lead kim.

Mr. Doar- What was the extent of your knowledge of Bernard
Lafayette's worky? in Dallas County, during the year 19437

]

A 1 knew that Bernard Lafcyctte was working i Dallas County
with the Dallas County \;otcrs" League; as a field represcenta-
tive, fcr uie Studznts Nop Violeat Coardinating Commttec.

Q (Mr. Doar continuing) Do you know what kind of w rrk he was
doing in Dalias County ?

A Yes, sir, e came in:to Dallas Count: to agsist the Dallas
County Votersilieague. in hulping to formuiate plans £t the
voters' cammpaign in Dallas County amang Negroes.

Do yuu know the Circuit Solicitor, Mr McLeol?
Yes, sir. .

Q Di:l you have aav conversation with hiin prior to the tine thit

Bernard Lafayette waz tried in the state court?

Mr. Piuts; Objec n"ou. Ldan't know whether he js referriag to

. Beronard Lafayecte or Blanchard Mol cod
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Judge Thornas: I don‘t understand your objection.

Mr. Pitts- His question is not clear. 1 d9n’t knuw whether

Mr. Doar is referring to a conversation with Blanchard

McLeod o, Bernard Lafayetto

Judge Thorias. Re-phrase your question,

Mr. Doar; Did you have a conversation with Circuit Solicitor

.Mr. McLeod about State vs Bernard Lafayette for vagrancy,

prior to the tirme it was tricd in the Couaty Court?

A Ye3, sir, I talked to Mr, McLeod, on the muraiag of the frin!.
approxirately an hour or 8o before the case was tried.
{Mr. Doar continuing} Where did that c'on\'ersa!ion take place”
Ir Mr. McLeod’s office, in the Couuty courthous2. Mr, McLead
Mr. Chesmut and | wcreb prcsent,
Who is Mr. Chestnut?
J. L. Cheswut, an attorney, with offices at Selma, Alaban.a,
He was assisting me in the trial of this case.

Q What was that conversation?

A The conversation related to the possibi.ity of a contiruaice of
the case. .

Mr. Pitts: I object to any conversation that tovk place between

this maa and Mr. McLeod, Now, any statemoent that Mr,
McLeod may have made would be admissible, but the coaver-

sation between the two wuuld not be adrmissible. Anv statdment
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made by Scay or Chestnut would not be adinissible at

4
that time. [ object to it, ,

Judge Thomas: [ think Mr. McLeod went into that 1n his

testimony, Overruled.

Mr. Pitts: Excepticn,
Mr. Qoare You inay answer,
A I discussed with Mr. McLeod the possibility ol a continuance

. . !
in the casc of the State of Alabama vs. Berrard Lafayette,
on the ground that I had just been called in, and I wanted to
prepare and file some preliminary moticns, .which 1t was

tay undesstanding under the law of Alabama -

Mr. Fius: 1 sbject ro what was his uaderstanding, We don't want

a Jdisssertation on the law.

Judge Thomas: Ge ahwead.

A

I asked Mr McLceod to continue the cade, to permit me to
prep‘arc and file some preliminary motions in the case of
State of Alabama vs, Bernard Lafayette, and Mr. MoLend
intimated to 1ne that the Judge wanted tu disposc of this case,
that he .woulnl not ubject to. a continuance, or that l could nicve
the Julge for a continuance and he would not ohject to it, but
he wiuld not agree to a countingance, because the Judye wanted

to dispose of it. That was the substance of the conversation,

56
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Mz, Doaz- Did Mr. McLeod make any cffer Lo you to nolle
pros the case?
No, sir,

Q (Mr. Dcar continuing) Did Me. McL;*od say anything to
you about proving to, hiza right then and there that Beruoard
.Lafayctte was gainfully employed ? ¢

Mr, Pitts Objectiun. That is not the purpose of the sulicitor,
. J purp

The purp-se of the <olicitor in Alabama is only to proseccute
pury A ¥ r

cases where ireople are arreste
Question of proving t the sslic)
does 1ot have to tike anybody's

Judge and let the Judge decide.

itor. He is a prosecuting attorney,
A )

Judge 1horﬁas~ Overruled,
Mr. Piets: Exception,
:4 No, sir, ‘
Mr, Do#r: Thank you,
CROSS EXAMINA TION

By Mr. McLeod

4 and bronght int ccurt, The
tor is absurd The solicitor
proof. He can submit it o the

That i3 not the duty of the solic-

Q Scay, when vou came to my affice, didnit [ (e]l you that the

ouly purpose ir.vilved was whetl:

emplnoyed?

A No, sir.

er he was empluyed ur not
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Had you talked to Bernard Lafayette at that time?

fes, sir,

Cida't you tell nre that &y had just run un to Selma and

had n-t had a chance to talk to your lient?

No, sir. Tinade that statement with respect to Bosie Reesec,
We were trying Bernard Luafayettae?,

Both caics were schaduled for trial,

Dida't I go to the Court rouin aud ask for a recess, £o you
could hawve tune to talk to your client? ‘

No, sir, 80 I would have an opportunity to tak to Bosie
Recse

Didu't you talk to Bernard Lafayette at that time?

1 had talked to him Lefore,

Didn‘t you tell inc that you didn't know whether he was em-
ploved or not? 1
N, sir,

The first ime cvidence was put hp that he waé employed,
didnit I ask the Court to stop the case right where it was;?
That is noi my recollection,

Was not the case stopped?

It is my recollaction that the case was dismissed by the Judge,

on his own motion,
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Q Didn't he ask :ne 14 agreer with by ?

A That s oy recollection, ‘

Q  What did | tell Kim»

A That yoyu agree.!

Q That 1 Rad ncibing else and that | tgreed with him ?

A Yes, «ir. ‘

Q Youdida't kv w that Bernard Lafayetts was e.nployed until
he got o the Stand and tnjd it ?

A Yos, sie.

Q bat you didn'y( tell mo 1hae when I agked yeu?
fLat didot ¢ sme 4p 1n the coaversation bLetwern the two of us,

Q You proved that all? he had was exXpeRse money, didnit yon?

A We proved that Lo had sufticient ;n Mey o live v i Selma,

Judge Thomas: Thaqi you, you may g,

MAXINE FUFFL:, being firs duly swarn to speak

the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, testifiod
L]

as follows:
- CROSS EXAMINATICN

By Mr. Doar
L]
Q Will you tell the Court your fuil name, plea-.ov

A b
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Maxine Ruffin,

Will you speak up in a loud veice; piease?
Yes, sir,

How old arr you”

TwentyQfour vears (;1' age,

How far did you go i school?

! finished High School,

Arc you emploved?

What is your job?

Clerk-typist fur the Fathers of St Anthony,
What‘is your race ?

Negro.,

How long have you lived in Selma ?

A

Q

A

Q

A

Q

A

Q

A Yes, lam.
Q

A

Q

A

Q

A All :ny life.

’
Q When you went up to register o vote in Februury 1963, were

you asked any questions b;} the registrars?

A Yes, 1 was, )

-

Q What questions were you asked?
A l was asked one question. what was tre¢ Constitution,
’ Mr, Pitts: I object to going into the questions that wero asked

. s
by the Board of Registrars, We are not trying the Buard of

’
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Registrars. This cave here involres Jim Clark, Blanchard
McLeod and Henry Recse and Dallas County. They say they
intimiidated pecple to keep them from vo‘ﬁng, ‘fhis affidavit
just says she was not intimidated. in any way. Tratis the

only purposce. To go into what the registrars did is jucompe-

tent, irnmaterial and irrelevant, and kas no nlace in this case,

Judie Thomas: Overruled.

Mr, Pitta: . Excepiion,

Mr. McLevd: The Ecard of Registrars 1s under the control of the
State of Alabama. Dallas County has na contrcl over them, cx-
cept to furnish a place for the meeting. .

Judge Thomas: I think that is admifsiblc. Ovcrrule.d.

Mr. Pitts: Ycur Honor, 1 4o feel like this. 1don't feel that
Jim Clark should be charged with what the Board of Regis-
trars di! and ncither should Dalias County nor Mr. McLeod,

Judge Thomas: She has answered the question. I cannot possibly
sec where it hurts or helps anybody. .

Mr., P‘itts-: 1 wish you would instruct the witness not to answer
until 1 kave a chance to object. . .

Judge Thomas: When you are asked a question and ‘someone objects,
please don't answer it until I rule vn the objection,

Mr. Pitts; 1 move to exclud.: the answer on the same ground,
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Judge Thrras: Overruled. Go ahcad.

Mr. Picts: Exception.
Mr. Doar: Do you remember when this affi lavit that you signed
was taken from you? R

A It was: I thiak, in July. lam not for sure.

Do you recall who wok the affidavit?

Q {(Mr. Doar continuing)

A 1 don't ren.e:nber his name, but he said he was a state mnves-
tigator.
Q Did the statc investigalor ask you at the time Lhe was interviewing

you whether or not you attended any of the mass mectings?
1y
Yes, sir, he didl. '

@hat did you tell him about attendance at any of the mass mect-

ings ?

A 1 told htm that 1 attended a couple onlt, becquse I was out of

town, and he asked ine were any deputy sheriffs at the first

1 esti:nated there werxe
]

meeting, andl told him there was.

about two hundred people there.

Q Did they ask you how those deputy sheriffs affected you?

A 1 rold him they raade me nervous,

Mr, Pitts: Objection, Thatis another way of getting in back-

handedly. Tkat calls for a mental conclusion and would not

rave been admissible, if asked.

Judge Thomas: Sustained.
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N r. Doar: Exception,
[}
Mr. Dear: Didn't you tell the stare investigator, ‘vhen he inter-
viewed you, that vou aidn’t go t any more mase 1aectiags be-
cause the Sheriff and posse men made you nervous?

Mr. Pitts- °  Objection,

Judyc Thomas: Overculed,

Mr, Pitts. Exception, )

A No, I told hi:n [ had not a.t‘tended any more beiaasse [ was out
of towu.

Mr, Pits: 1 object to any other statement, She said Nu. Tie

question ralls‘ fur Yes or No,
Judze Thomas: All right, O, K,
Mr. Dorar: What did you teil hin?
Mr. Pitts. Objection.
Judge Thomas: Overruled, ' .
Mr. Pitts: Exception.
A I told himn I didn’t go, because I had Le=n out of town an

niy vacation

. .
Mr, Dcar: Did you describe t3 hiin the nainber of police officers
out:ide the mectings ?,
A Yes, t1r. 1 did. 1 told them they were dressed in brown khaki

unifor:is, with helinets on their heads, anlt same had gup s and
L 4
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1 .
sticka and they were stationed outside the Clhurch on Bread
and Lauderdale,
_—
Mr. Doar. Did you state anything to him ahout them ma‘king you
»
nervous ?
Mr, Pirts, Objectiun,
Julge Thoemas: Sustained.
1 A Yes, sir,
. Mr, Doar: Exception.
. Mr. Doar: What did you say about making you nervous?
s Mr, Pitts: Objectior. That is leading, .
j Julge Thom:as: Sustained,
3 Mr. Doar: Exceptinr
1
Mzr. Doar: Would the Court permit nmic to purasue the question
under Rule 43 (¢)?
4
b ' Judge Thomas. No, sir,
R
’ Mr, Dnar: Exception,
Judge Thomuas: Any Re Direct? °
Mr. Gayle: No, sir, ' .
. dudge Thon.as Thak you very much, You ma',-‘bu excused, if you
like.
q
'
1
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ETHELYNE JONES NETTLES, being first duly
swurn to speak the truth, the whole truth. and nothing but the

truth, testified as follows:

CROSS EXAMINATION

By Mzr. Doar

Q Will you teil the Court your full pame, pleasc?

EFhelyie Jones Nettles, .
Will you sprak up in a load voite, 10 evervons can hear vou.
Try to make pceple in the back of the court room hear you,
then everyone can hear you. How old are vou?

I am twenty-five years of age. '

Are you married or single?

lam marricd.
What is vour race?
Negro.

How long have you lived in Selma?

Twenty -five years,
How far Jdid you go in scho»nl?

tI went one year to businegs school,
Was that after finishing High School?
Yes, sir.

You filled out an affidavit and signed an affidav:t some tirme in

July, in connecticn wsith this case, iv that riqut?

.
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Yes, 1did .
L that afiidavit, you referred to the iact that yaou went to
the D allas County Courthouse on the 17th day of Jum.:,.
1963, to register. is that right? '
Yes.

Was that the first timé. you had gone up to register?
No.

Could you tell us when the first titne you tried to register was?
1 went the third Monday in March 1963,

Were you accepted or rejected? '

I was ;ejected,

Did you go apain before the 17th of Junc?

Yes, 1did.

What happened on that occasion?

1 object to this line of questioning. What the rex §§rar5

did is not valid evi&encc on Jim Clark, Blanchard Mcleod or Henry

Reese or Dallas County.

Judge Thomas: Ove rruled.

Mr. Pitts: Exception, ,
A Yes, D did, o

Mr, Doar: What happened on that occasion?
Mr, Pitts: Same objection, same ground.

b o e i e o e n s g
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Judge Then.as:  Overruled,

Mr., Pitts: Exception,

A Yes, Idid

Julie Thomas: He asked you what happened on that n:casiu:x,

A Well, I stood in line .nnd [ was able to get Lo the door, but I .
didn't get inside tﬁ-.- office, .

Mr. Doar: How long did you stand in line ?

Mr, Pitrs: I move to exclude that answer, bevause it does not
g0 to prove ur disprouve the éovernment's allegarions against
Jua Ciark or aay of these Defendants.

Judye Thom.as: She #t.ll Las a right to answer, Cveriuled,

Mr, Pitta: Excepticn,
Mr. Pitts: Which visit are you talking about?
Mr, Do.re The visit that wock place on the 3rd of June, the ovne

b:fore dlc one she covered in her affidavit,

Mr, Daar: How long did you stand in that line ?

Mr. Piits- Obiection, un the same grounds. 'Nhatl am trying to
get at, 1 den’t want to be objecting to all thus, if it 1s $omiething
that Jim Clark or sume of these Defendants did -

Judye Thomas: She n:ight say tiat the Sheriff came up there and did

sometiang. Hew db U know unti! they ask her? Overruled,

Mr, Pitus: Exception,

iy e e s i~
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A

Mr.

Daar: How long did you stand i: line ?

I stood in line from 10:20 until 12:00. until the man =aid it

was closed, he was going to lunch,
(Mr, Duar continuing) Speak up, please,

The man came to the door and said they were going to clese

up for luach,

The next ti'me you went back was the the d.ir ! time, on the

17th of June?

If you make a motion to exclude the answer, [ will exclude
¢

it.

Pitts; 1 move to cxclude the answer.

Judge Thoras: Granted,

Mr, Dnar: Exceptiun,

Jul;e Thuinas: Now, what is your questiou?

Mr .

A

Q

A

Q

Mr,

Duar: .The third time you went, it was on the 17th of June?

‘.'c's.

(Mr, Doar centinuing) Ia your affidavit, you have indicatnd
that you v¢ere asked six or sevm.'a oral questions by the Board?
Yes, Lwas,

What were those oral questions?

Pitts: Sjection

Jurdge Tho'r.as: fustained,

Mr. Doar: Excepty:n,

68
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Mr, Doar:

Mr. Doar: I rove that all these affidavity be exclpded on the

ground they are immater:al.
Judge Thomas: ‘Overruled,

Mr. Doar: Exception,

[ would like to move, specifically, that this affi-
davit be excluded on the ground that it is immaterial.

Judge Thomas: Overruled.

Mr Doar: Exception.

Mr, Doar: I move, specifically, that the Court strike from the

affidavit "I filled out an application and answered six or seven

questions'',
Judge Thomas: Overruled, t

Mr. Doar: Fxception.

Mr, Doar: 1 would like to ask ‘he right to cross examine this

.

witness with respect to what she said in her affidavit.

Judge Thomas® You have a right to do thit.

Mz, Doar: What questions were asked you?

Mr, Pius; Objection. . What the Bear.l may have done is not

binding on these Defendants.
Judge Thomas: Imwill let her answer, aad if it has nothing to dn

with the lawsuit, you may move to exclude the answer, Over-

ruled,

Mr. Pitts: Exception.

- 69
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L | A He aske | ine to narue the departments of the Govermment,

¢ and thea he asked me what type of Goverament I prefereed,
then ne asket me vhat was Congreszs, ant he ashed me who
nake s the lawg, and he asked 'me what do he rmean wher. he
savs a person is "boua fide', what was "'scu-.taf"_. and thes

ke gaid what are the principles of the Gaverninent,

™

Mr. Pitts; T move t7 exclude that. It does uot Lo tu prove ur
dispreove any of the allegations of the compla.cr. Ivowld ot

be hinding on any Defendant.

Judge Thomas* All right, grantel, .

)
Mr. Doar: Exception,
Mr. Doar: In ynur affidavit, you have testified you sail that

:
;
v
¥

P
&
!

you wezne ot threatened, intimidate! or abusad by aay beard

>
.asrabar, cnanty ufficial or any other person before, duriag or

.’ .- after tne ri ne you registerced to vote, 1s that right"ﬂ’ '
A Yes, 1t is,
Q (Mr, Doar continuing) Now, éo ycu krow Bernard Lafayette?
A Yers, ’ .
Q 'D‘.-l vy know (hat he was working in this crunty on voter
reyistration?
A Yes,

Q  Did you know that he bad been arrested by Sheriff Clark
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]
for vagrancy? ’ .
A Yes, sir. ~
Q Did you kiow Bo:zic Reene? *
Mr. Pitts; Objection. Iaon't think it ias any bearing on this
case,
Julge Thomas: Overruled,
Mr. Pittas: Exception, .
A Ye:.
Mr, Doar: Did yo8 know that he was arrested by the Sheriff?
A Yes, Idid, )
- Q (Mr, Douar continuing) Did von kn-ow Alezander Browrn?
A Yes, Ldid.
Q D 1d vou know that he had beon working on voter registra-
. '
tion in Dallas County? »
A Yes.
Q Did you know that he had been arrested by the Gheriff !
A Yes.,
Q What cffect did these arrests by the Sheriff Lave on you,

with respect to being intcrestad 1a getting involved in voting
. ¢
in Dallas County?

Mr. Pitts: Objection.

Judge Thomas: Sustained,

Mr. Doar: Exception,




et

Mr. Doar: Do y¢u know whether or not there are any Negro
people who were afraid i register to vote in Dallas
County?

Mr. Pitss: Objec.tion,

Jadge Thomas: Sustained,

Mr. Doar: Exceptiun,

Mr. Doar: That is all.

RZ DIRECT EXAMIIATION
By Mr. Madison

Q { believe you said when you got to the registration office
that day you stood in line?
Yes, sir.

Q Was there a line there?

A What day, are you talking about?

Q The day ybu registered?

A Yes, sir,

Q How many people, do you recall?

A it was about ten or fifteen. .

Q About ten or fifteen people ?

A Yt.‘s. .
Q Both colored and whirte ?

A Weld, I belicve there were abuut two white peoplc there.




A

[}
Q Aud the rest of the'n were Negroes?
A Yes,
Judge Thomas; Thank you very inuch., You may go,

if you would like. Call your next witness,

Mr, Doar: T would like to call Slieriff James

Clark.

JAMES CLARK. being first duly sworn to speak

the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, testified

as followz:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

4

By Mr, Doar
Q At the last hearing, I asked you tu check to see whether
or not you had a list of license plate numbers that you had
taken down or ; sur men had taken down at vne or racre of
the mass meetings, Did you look to see if }bur records
contain that list?
They did not.

You lonkad to see if Licy had it and they were not there?

Yes. .

o > D %

On the 29-h of july; 1963, Sheriff Clark, did you dircet
your men to arrest narsons operating vehicles without a

ticense Food 1.ght around @ mas: mecting that right?
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f Mr. Pitts: Objection, as incumpetent, icam aterial and irrele~

vast, Thne 29t of July was after this hearing

; J} ‘ ' Judge Thomas, 1 am not going inte anything that happened subse -
‘ quent tu July 25th, 1963. This casc started on that da-c.
] I nu-an the Plaintuf put ou its (ra*.;‘c( Tne Defendants put
1 - cn their case. [ asked the Plaintiff i there was any rebuttal
] ) ‘ and the Plaintift.statcd they had not had an pportunity cf
3 reading the a’fidavity, and they weuld advise me later, and
j I s:ated that would be quite all right., Mr. Doar, or someonc
: representing the G-»verx.\'nent, advised mc 2 day or two later
that they did wish to put un rebutlal testimony, and to ¢ress
exaniane some of the people cr maybe all of the people who hal
4‘1 made affidavits that Defendants had of.fcred. I stated that that
; was all right. That is the purpose of the hc‘aring today. 1
f sustaia the objuction,
1 Mr. Duar: Exception, '
1 Mr. Dear: Your Honor, could I be heard o dat?
4
1

Judge 1romas:No, sir, 1 rufed on that,

i NMr, Doar: 1 would like to respectfully ask the Court to give e

i

five minutcs to present that matter to the Court.
1 Judge Thomnas: [ am not going into anything that happcned subse~

quent to July 25th, other than to permit the Governicent to
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.
introduce the results of thuse two trials, which are already
in,

M:r, Doar Your Huuor, could I make for the record a state -
ment,- v.ith respect to our theory of why this evidence js
adinissible ? .

Judge Thon:as, [ think Vou have that right, yes, sir.

Mr, Duar, Paragraph i9 of our ¢omplaint alleges that unless

restraincd, the Jdefendiits will coantinue to chgage in unlawful

acts, the same or siiniiar to those described in the complaint,

Under that paragraph of the complaint, we respecully urge
this Coust that it is material as to Wie conluct of the Sherssf
right up to the date of this hearing. U the Cuurt were to uot
.

. to the acts of Sheriff Clark, as thev are related to effurts
by Negroes o register to vote, the Ceurt wouid be doing
an injustice both to the Govertuwnt and to Sheviff Clark
Because of otier busiaess of the Court, the Court was no‘t
able to continue to Lear the full €asc that day. and, as a
result two months have expired  What haypene | within
those two moaths is very material on whether or ot the

Court should ¢ should not issue an injunction, as a Court of

Equity.

con sider what has happened in Selma, Alabama, with tespect

75
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We woull propose to show to the Court foy: events
that ovcurred duriay that ti-ne, The first event was the arrest
of soine tv.cen ty -nine propke, Negroes, who were at a n.uss mect-
ing, for impreper license tag lichts on July 29th, The second
woull be the arres? of twenty -seven Negroes. who were p.-ckcting
with voter registration signs i1 1ront of the cousthouse on ae tom-
ber 25th. and the fuct that they were chargoed with unlavful assenbly
an«-]. iaciting a riot. and that bond vas set for those Neyproes at cithe o
$500.00 «.r $1,000.09. The third fact we would shonw is that fi¢
Nuegroaes were arrosted in front of the courthouse on September
27th, ca:rying voter registralica signs, and thev were arrested ;
an'l char ed widi incitiag a rior aud L.l'llh\\ ful asscmibly, and their
bonds v.ere set ar wathesr $530.00 or $1,.G0.90, “lhe fourth wo
would shew that Sheriff Clark arrested on L.hc Ist ot Ocreber,
five Negroes, who were parading or picketing i fru it ot the
courthouse, acrovs the strect, in front of the federal huilting,

across the street fre.n the courth ouse, wunl charsed Suse Ne -

proes with uniawful assembly .nd inciting 4 riotg, when they wore
praceiully carrving signs, urging pecole to register tu vote.

We would also shiow 1o the Gourt, if the Court please, that on
the 2nd of Cctober, there were tvo or three Negro stadents or

oung people who were carryisg vigns on foderal sronerty and
Y n pecp y Prop Ve
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sazxdiué vn federal propesty, either at the old or m:vw postoftice,
and ware permifted by Sheriff Clark to »tand :)nérq all day, und
they were therc a substantial part of the day and were not arres:-
ed, On Octsber 7th, at a voter registration date, where cver two
hundred Negroes lineJ up to register, Shoriff Clark required those
Negroes to stay in line ail day and did not permit any Negro to
leave the line withaut 1asing his place, cven if it was to go to the
bath room, or get anuther pair of shoe‘s,. or get something to eat,
Nout one of those Neggoes was permitted to leave the voter regis -
tration lize to exercise and do any act unless they suffercd the
penalty of guing to the rear of the very slowly moving registra-
tiou'line. We woull show to the Court Uiat Sheriff Clark and his
deputies arrested two Negro students, who tried to bring food to
thosc people who were standiny, wai'ti.ng to register to vote, .
and also that on the same date three pickets, three indiviciu.al
Negro smdcr.n.s, who were standing on federal property with 4
signe urging albcitizens to register to vote, were arrested by
Sheriff Clark and chbarged with unlawful assembly and tnciting
a riot,

. Now, it is that proof that we think is material under
parayraph 19 of the complaint, which alleges that unless re-
strained, the defendants will continue to engage in unlawful

acts, the same or similar to those described in the complaint,
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I additica, if the Court please, if ‘te Ccurts feels that
the co:nplaiat is not hroad ebiugh v cover l.h‘aﬂt-,rﬁl would reupect-
fully ask the Court to take the evidence under Rule 15 (b) of the
Rules of Fedaral Procedure, which provides if evidence is objer ted
. at the time of the trial, on the ground that'it is not within the .
issnws made by the plgadings. the Court may allow the pleadings
t> be amended, and shall do so {reely when the presentation of
the casc will he served thereby, aud the o!;jccting party fails to
satisfy the Court that the admission of such evidance will vreju-
dice Liin in maintaining his action in the defense upon the merit. .
L. comsectior with that, at the conference that we had here 1
Selma, on the 2rd of October, it 15 my recollection that { adviaed
the defendants that [ would atempt to offer this evidence., The
Cuurt did indicate what his tentative ruling would he.
rc%pect the Court’s riling, but I do urge the C curt to re-
consider its ruling, in the light of the ecvidence we would
offer. It is all corfined to arrests by Sheriff Ciark of
persons who were carrying voter rcgistratxc;n l.i,,'n& out in
the im-nediate vicinity of the courthcuse, 1n-a peacefal
manner, where there were no crowds aind no disrurbance
wha:sowever, It also relates ro the conluzt of the Sheriff,
with respect Ww N':sro citizens, who were tryiug to register

t> vote, and what he dii t>* thers, and what rules he laid dowy
L]
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*

to them at the voler registration line last Monday,

Judge Thomas: I have re-consulered my ruling a..d 1 still think

it is right,

Mr, Doar: Would the Court ncrmit me a 1ninute to cunfer with e
other counsel, please? -

B

e

Judge Thormas: Surely,

Mr. Doar: I would state 0 the Court that we have a number of
witnesscs that we called to prove thcse iteins that the Court has

)

ruled on and conrsidered noi 0 be ad.nissihlc, under the ter:ns
and li:irits of th:s ruling. 1If the Court would permit a recess at
this tim~, so we culd re-crganize the ;cmaining, withrsses,
1 think there are threc or four other vximessc; we would call
after lunch,

Juldye Thoinas® You can call tiem before lunca, 1 will reecss fur

1}

five mirut:s. ~

Thereupon, a five minute racess was had.
Thercafter, Cuurt re-convened aad the following !rane;pired:
Judge Tiormr.as: All rigkt, procced, please.

CRQOSS EXAMINATION

By Mr. Pirts

.8 :
Q Mr. Clark, did you p0 to Clara Bell Smith’s kause tw get

the affidavit?

A 1 did not,
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the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, testificd

as follows:

" and the dates they were held, between February 5th and July

&0

Were you present at the time any of those affidavits were

g g

taken ?

I was not,

MARIE FOSTER, being first duly sworn to speak

e s

et s

CROSS EXAMIRNATION :
By Mr. Doar
You testified bi-fore at the first hearing, did you not?

Yes, 1did.

You als-+ identified a note book, in which you kert 'f'}
oy
track of the number of persons nthat attended a nunber ‘2
of registration clinice that you conducted ?
Yes. .
Diq you, at my request, make a computation of the number ;

of Negro persons that attended your voter registration clinic

16th, 1963?

Idid.




Q Did you ontain these couats from the document which
was cffered i wvideace at the last hearwag?
A 1 did, .
fo) Would oy exdimri i this Jocument and teil me if
thar is a copy of the iist thai you compiled at my re-
quast and Mr, Wasserstrom's requesi?
A !t. is.
Mr. Doar: J woulld like to ask‘ that this be marked as Plaintiff

Exhibit €0 and shown to the Defendants and then offerad in
]

evidence.

Judge’ Thumas: Lot me sce if L understand it. T.he docurnent from
which this computation has been inade, .s- it in evidence?

Mr. Doa;" Yes; -;'our Hounor, it is,

Judge Thoitas, Do you know what aumber it is.

Mr, Dear: I can :ell ycu in a minute.

Judge Thomas, [t is probably 16, |

Mr. Doar: It is probably 34 or 35,

Judge Thomas: [ beg your pardon. It is after 33,

Mr, 0"Cionnor: Is 1t a buok like thi.s.’ It is 34 -Nl‘d 35,

Judge Thimas; Is that cu.rrect?

Mr, Doar: Yes, sir,

Judge Thomas: Tl books themselves are the best evidence, but

¢
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this is merely a compntation for the convenicnce of the

[ 13

partics
Mr. Doar. Yes, sir, ar;d the Court, because it takes quite

a while tu dissect this out, because the Court uniy admitted

part of the pagea in the books.

Thercupun, said computation gas marked Plaintiff Exhibit 50,

Mr, Doar: ° Mrs. Foster, what has been the eifect on voter’

-3
registration activities by you of the arresis of Beruard .

Lafayette, Bosic Reese an d Alexander Brown?

Mr. Pitts: Objection.

Judge Thornas: Sustained,

: '
+ Mre. Doar: - Exception,

Mr. _Doa‘u-.' Mrs, Foster, how long haﬁ- you lived in Selma?

A lhave lived in Selma around forty years.

Mr, Doar: Has there ever becn as much aciivity amnong the

N;.gré citizcrs concerning votcr registration as there has

} been this past summer? )
! A No,

Mr, Pitts: Objevtion,

Judge Thoma:: Overrwled.
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Mr, Pites- Exception,

Mr. Duar: Mfs. Foster, if you will, betore answering the
ques‘ion, wait to see if t‘he defense attorney ob: ecta,
They thould heve ar opportunity to make an 'objectwn
beforc you answer. Wiill you do that? Mrs, Foster, in
connection with your work as a teacher at the VOter Tegis -
trati»n ¢linic. will you tell me whether or not ans specific
Negroes tald vou they were .alraid te continue to corne t»
the clinic, because of the arrests of Bernard lafayetie,
Bosie Recse or Alexander Brown by Sheriff Clirk?

Mr, Pitts: Ohjection,

Julge Thonias. Sustained.

3 Mr, Doar: Exception,
Mr. Doar- Do you have an opinion, Mrs, Foster, as to why

the nu:nber of persous who attended veur voter roegistra-

tion clinic dropped cff in the middle of June and t.hronghoixt v

. July ?
' Mr. Pirs. Pbjection,
Tudge Thomas: Sustained,

f . Mr, Decar: Ex eption,
Mz, Doar:  Tratis all,

.
Judge Thomas: Any Re Direct? .
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Mr. McLeod:. No, your Honor.
Judge 1hoinas, Thank you very gauch. You may be
excused,

AMELIA BOYNTON; being first duly swurn to
speak the truth, the whole truth, and nsthing but the trych,
“testificd as follows: -
DIRECT EXAMINA TION
By Mr, Doar
You testified before in this trial, is that correct?
Yes, sir. »
Would veu tell the Court what your full name js ?
Amelia Platts Boynton
How long have you lived 1n Selma?

L have been in Selma since 1930, It is thirty -threc ycars,

P > D » p » p

How leng have vou heen active in working on voter regis-
tration?

For the past {ifteen years,

Have you been actsve f:ontinuously during that period?

L have been active cuntintxouslf but to a snalkdegree,

D > D »

What was the situation in Sclma durinyg that period, or in
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Dalla: County, with respect ts JNegroes attesnpting to

register to vote? .

Mr. Pitts: Objecticn, Thatis way beyond the time that

Jim Cilark was ever Gheriff of Dallas County.

Julge Thon.az-
Mr. Doar:
1963,
Mzr. Fitts:
Clark.
Judge Thomias:
“Mr. Pitis:

Mr. Pitts:

What period?
Th: perisd betwcen 1946 and the suamer of
That was prioc to the time cf Sheriff

]
Overruled
Exception.

Your Honor, one othcr thing I would like to

point cut to the Court, [ object on the ground that it is

)

covering a period when this defendart. Jim Clark, was.

nut inoffice. 1 point out to the Court that it 18 callinag

for testimony that has nothing to do with this case at all.

It is a question of whether or not Jim Clark intimidated

’ 0
anyone to kecp them from voting. That is the quostion

that is involved iv this case,

.'h:dgc Thomas,
Mr, Pittse

Mr. Pitts:

Overrul ed.

Exception,

1 would like to object further on the grourd

that she is not qualified.
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Judge Thormas: Overrul cd.
Mr. Pitts; Exception.

Judge Thomas: Give the Defrndants an objection to this
Al

line of testimony, )
. .

A When [ firs! started. ! was working with my husband,
getting pecrle to register; hy hvoldi ng clinics. Negroes
were not tegisterirg in large numnbers, Perhaps two or

4
tiiree of thum would be up there ata tine, and some-
times just one., There was a statement nade by orne of
the of [icials that "we cannot afford to let Negroes register
inlarge nutnbhers” -

Mr. Fitts: Objection,

Judge Thonias: Sustained, The question is too hroad, Ask her
specif ic questions: Mr. Doar,

Mr. Doar: Exceptivn.

Mr. Doar Mrs, Boyntup, to your bnowledge, a_bout how
many Megroes registered prior to the summer of 1963 in
Dailas County? '

Mr. Fitts: Chi c.ction,

Judge Thomas  Sustaired.

Mr. Douar- Exceptior, .

Judge Thamas- The record is all inany way, most of it.
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Mr. Doar. What did the Court say?

Judg: [Monas: Objecties sustained,

Mr. Doar: Exception,

Mr. Poar- Did you kuep a record of the xmmBer of Negroes

[
whko became registered to vote during the peri-.»d through -
the 5073 ?

Mr. Pit!s: Objeciion,

Judge Thomas: Sustaioed,

Mr. Doar; Exceétion.

Mr. Doar: Mrs. Boyaton, has there ever been as much
activity .n connecticn with voter regisl.rati-;.u of Negroes
in Dallas County; in yeur experience in the last -fifrcen'
years, as there was this sunimer?

A No,

Mr. Pitts- Ibjociing, on the same ground,

Judge Tho:zas: Overruled.

Mr, Piuss Exceptiun,

A No; there has not been as much activity previously that
there was this sumnmer,

- - : ) .
Mr, Doar In connection with the Negro people in Dallas

County, upan whom do thev depend for their cconomic

livelihoo]?
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Mr, Pitts;. Objection, .

Judge Thon.as: Susta.. ed,

Mr. Doar: Excepiion.

Mr, Doar: Can you tell ine whether or not Negroes are
dependent upoi the white community for their jobs ?

A They are,

Mr. Pitts: Obhjection,

Judge Thomas: Sustaired.

Mr. Doar: Excaeption,

Mr. Doar: You knew Bernard L:u'ayette'.'

A Yes,

Q {Mr. Doar cuntinuing) You knew Bosie Reese ?

A Yes, o

Q You knew Alexander Brown?

A Yes. |

Q Dil you know that thosu Lhrers'persons had been working
with your league on votur i‘cgistralion durirg this year in
Sclma? |

A Yes.

Q Did you know that they were arrested by Sheriff Glark on
various criminal charges?

A Yes,
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Q What nas buen the cffect of their arrests on the Ncgrc:
citizers ir Dallas Courty?

A They are very fearful,

Mr. Pitts: Objecticn,

Judge Thomas; Dan 't answer the question urtil they have an

opportunity to object and 1 rule. Objectinn sustained.

Mr, Doar: Exceptior.

Mr, Doar: Did you attend most of the mass meetings that

were held this suminer in connection with \oter registra-

1 t1.n?
A Yo,
Q {Mr. Daar cantinu.i.g) After the arcest of Berrnard Lafayette,

can you iell me whcther or not any Negro citizens of Dallas

County told you that they didn't want to become involved ia

voter registration heciure of this arrent?

Mr, Piuts: Objeation, .

Ju-dye Thomas: Sustinel o
. L4

Mr, Doar: Exception.

Mr. Doar- Do you know of any Negro citizens in Dallas County

whn have not tried to register to vote, because. of Bernard

Lafaycttc's arrest?
Mr. Pitts: Qbujection,
Judge Thomas: Sustained, \

Mr. Doar: Lxception.
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Judge Thomas: 1s there any Cross?
Mr. Pitts, Nu questions,

— - Judge Thomas  Thark you very much, You may be excused,

PETTUS Gll FORD, being first duay sworn to speak

the truth; the whle truth, and nothing but the truth, testified as

follow s:
CR .53 EXAMINATION
! By Mr, Dnar
'
Q Mr. Gilferd, wili you tell the Court your full name, please?”
A Pettus Gilford.
L 3 Q How cld are you?
, 1
3 s A Forty-raven,
E '
é ? Q What 18 y.ur race? -
A Negro, - oy
} Q By whom are you cinployed? *
] .
. A 1 am sclf e:uploye ]
y Q What Jd> you da ?
1 : A Far:n.
Q Cid you sign ar affidavit ic connection with this case; about
L, 1 7 your expcrience 1t AlCILPling to register on Jure 7th?
§ .
. 1 ’
.
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Yes, s .
How far have you gone in school ?
1 finished High School.
When you went up 1o try to register on June 17th, was that
the firs: time you tried to registcré
»o, rir,
- . L}
Wher. did you first try to register ?

1tried to register, I guess, several years ago.

Were you able v become successful in registering?

Mr. Pitis: Objectivn,

Judge Tho:nas: Sustainced.

Mr. Doar: Exception,

Mr. Duar:

June 17th?

Mr. Pitts: Objection,

Jud_e Thomas: Dverruled,

Mr. Pirnts; Exception. ~
A Twice,
Mr, Doar Now,; «hen vou were up in the line there on the

A

17t: of Jure, did Aloexander Brown ask yéu 1f he could take
your picture?

He did.

How maLy umes have you tried to register before

9l

1;-?‘«1
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Q {Mr. Doar coatinuing) Did yuu tell him that he could take

your picture?
Mr. Pitts: Obiection, as leading,
Mr, Doar, This is their witness. "This is Cross Examina-

tion. Did you tell him that he could take your picture?

A I ©ld hitn it was ail right,
Q {Mr. Dcar continuing) Would vou épeak up Inud, pleau-‘?
A Itold him it was ll right with me.
Q Now, dov you know whether or not there arc any Negroes
in Dallas Counly who are afraid to iry o register 10 vote?
Mr, Pitts: QObjection, |
Judge Thomas: Sustained. *
Mr, Doar: ‘E.xveptiun.. .
Mr. D oar: When you went @n to try to register to vote on

the 17th of Jure; Jid the Board of Registrars or any one
of the membrrs ask you any questions ? ,
Mr. Ritts: Objection.
Jud’gc Thomas- Overiuled.
Mr, Pitts: Exception.,
A Yes. sir,

Mr, Doar: What questions were asked you?

‘A One question was: what does the word "secular' mean,
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g ‘Q (Mr Dcar ccntinaing) What other questions were asked?
i A What d» you mean Ly "bona ﬁdc;'._.
%‘ e ‘j Q Were you asked any other questions?
' 1 A One questi.'.)n I was asked was® What was the Constitution
3
; 1 ' of Congress  That is what [ urderstood him o say
1 ] Q Were you accepted or rejected when you tried tn register? ’
s . 3 A Rejected. . ‘
Q . Whiie you were np in the Lall there, waitinig to register, did

you see Busie Reese or the other young men there bothering
anyone in the hall”

A No, sir.

Q Were you in a position to observe what they were doing while .
they were insile the courthouse?

¢ A Ye«s, sir,

8 Did they bother anybudy that day?

A 1dida’t see them bother anybody.

Judge Thomnas: Ary Re Direct?

s Mr. Pirts: Wone.

Judge Thomas; Tharnk you very much., You may go,
r Mr. Doar; T would like to offer in c\'i:!énce notice of the regiv-
4 C : * tration periods in Dallas County, official special notice, during

E M the remainder of this monik and next month.
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Mr, Mcl.cud: Ob_jéctiow. That has nothing to do with this
Case,
Judge Thomas: Sutained,
Mr, Doar: Lxccption,
Mr, Doar; Wauld the Court permit the ducument to be :nade
a part of the recura?
Judge Thomas You have 4 right to bave it identified, . !
Thereupon, said docwoaent was marked Plaintiff Exhibit 51 far iden-

tificazjon,

EDWIN M, MO35, Lbeiny Iirfx duly sw;)rn to speak
the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the trutn, testified
as. follows: ' m

DIRECT EXAMINATION
By Mr, Dovar
Will you tell the Guurt your full name, plcase?
My name is Edwin M. Moss,
What is your race?
Negro.

How lang have you lived in Selma ?

> D » p » p

Forty-eight years,
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Have you been active in connection with the voter regis-
tration progra.n of the Negro comnmunity this surnn:er‘

in Selra?

I have.

Car you teil me how the activity concerning voter regis-
tration i1n the Nogro corununity compares this fummer with

former years in Dallas Conaty ?

Pitts, Objccting,

Judye Themas., Uverruled,

Mr.

A

Mr.

Pitts: Exceptlion,
I weuld £ ay that the participation for this particular drive
has been the greatest participatiun that [ can recall,
Doar: You werce aware of the arrest of Berunard Lafayctte
for vagramy?
' .
lam.
.
{(Mr. Deoar contruuing) vou knew of the arrest of Bernard
Lafavette for vagrancy?
ldid., | .
You were aware of the arrest of Besie Reese, while he was
[
at the courthoude un an assignment in connection with voter *
registratior?
1am,
¢
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Q Are you aware of the urresy of Alexander Browr near a

miss meceting on the 22nd of July?

A 'Yes, sir,

Q' Yc.'u kncw that these three people were working on voter
registration ?

I did,

Q Can you tell me whether or not they had or had not had wide
contact with INegroes in Dallas Courty prior t the time they
were arrested ?

A They hal. .

Q Can yuu tell nie what the effect of their a17ests has heen upon
tbe Negro community, in connection with their desire to :.ar-
ticipate in voting ?

Mr, Pitts: Objection,

Judgc 'I'homas‘: Sustained,

Mr. Doar: E~ceptiun,

Mr. Doar: Do you knuw of any particular Negz;ocs who have

- held back from getting involved in voter registration activi-
ties, because of those arrests ?

Mr, Pitts: Objecuun,

Judge Thon.as: Sustained,

Mr, D oar: Exception,
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Mr, D oar. Who was responsible for Negro voter registra-

T —
il

il

1

tion activity this sununer in Selma?

. Mr. Pites: Objeciio., :
; Judge Thoinae: I think that calls for a condlusion, Sustained, -
11 T * Mr. Doar- Excueptize, .
A 4 .
Q .4 A | Would you plrase ri peat the question ?
‘F- : Judge Thomas: [ don't thirk it is admissible, .
- ] Mr, Doar: ~ That is ail the questions I have for him, .
Judyge Thomas: Thank yuu very much. You inay be excused,
1
.
1 . CLAUGH1ON MELVIN PORTER. bcing first duly
1 j . sworn to speak the truth, the whole truth, arnd nothing but the
i ' truth, testified as follow.. _ '
: [ ' 1 : CROS5S EXAMINATION
F ‘ « By Mr, Doar
1 ] . Q What is yhur full naine, plezse?
X
R A Cl aughtor.x Melvin Porter,
E ] Q How old are you? . .
1 1 . .
r i - A I am twenty-six years old.
3 :
4 Q" Where du you live?
3 4
.?
] 1
'
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1614 Church Strect, Selma, Alibama,

How long have you lived n Selma 2

l‘ wAas borr here,

How fur did )'-;u L0 in schcf')l ? .

A yeur and three suamers in cnl'legeg

What ie your race? .

Neyro

Did you sigr affidavit, with respect W your registration
experiencs in Dallag County this swnmer, 4t the request of
a sr:ate favesigator? A .
Would you repeat that, please ?

Did you sign .4~ affi-lavit in connecuion with this case, at the
request of a scate g, vestigatur Mealing with vour vater reg-
istration exjerierce kere?

Would you expla:r ¢Xperience ?

You did sigr an afiila vit; with respect to E2ing 5 ard u, np

4
to register in February 19637 )
Idid,
Was that the first tmre you tricd to register ?
No.
How mnany tinmers Prior to that date pal you tried? .

Eigh? times,

A

e
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Mr, Pitts, Objectian, a8 incojupetent, iramatezial and irzlevant,

This iz not part of a registration case; unless it iavilves ine

timidation in some way b the Sheriff,

Judge Thon:as: When was the first time ?

A vhen [ came out of the Awr Force.

Judge Thu.-nas:l Just give me the date?

A July 1936

Judge Tho.nas: Thern, the last time you went was in February
1963, is that right? |

A That is right.

Judge Trhomas: 1o9u went six times in between those two dat:s?

A Seven tinger

Judge Thomas® Over ried

Mr. Pitts- Excepucn,
Mr. Duar: Nuw,; in y.ur ~ftidavit, you say that you were
not threatened, intimidated or abuged by any memters of
.

the bnard ur any couaty officials. At that particular time,

the eighth tire, you were referring just to the time you wert

up to register?

Nr. Pitts. 1 chject to what he was referring to. The affidavit

speaks for jtself, He sayvs he was not threatened; intimidated

or abused by any members of the board or any county officials.

99
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Judge Thomas: Overruled,

Mr, Pitts: Exception,

Mr. Doar: " You were referring just to the time you went up

in February, in your afiidavit?

A Yes, sir.
Q (Mr. Doar continuing) Do you know Sheriff Clark ?
A Yes,
¢
Q Do you know of any instances where he has intimidated
any Negroes, ir conacction wili their voter registration
activities ?
Mr. Pitts: Objection, as incempetert, immaterial and irrele-

vant, The periovd is not dcfined, It would have w0 be prior to

July 25th, 1963,

Judge Thonas: Owverruled.

Mr, Pitts: Exceptinr.,
Mr. Deoar: . .You may answer. . -
A Yes, ,
Q (Mr. Doar coniinuing} \'Vould you give the Court thuse ine
stances; confinug yourself to prior to the 25th of July,
19637 '
A ‘Monday, October Tth, R

Mr, Pitts:

Judge Thomas: | grant the motion

100
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1
3 i : : Mr, Doar: Before July 25th?
3 . .
—= A No,
i o Q (Mr. Doar curtinuing) Du you kKnow Bernard Lafayette ?
1 .
: A Yeu.
Q Did you know he was arrcsted by Sheriff Clark? r.“_-.;}.
4 A Yes.
Q D id you know Busiv Rease?
:
4 i A Yes,
E , Q Did you know that Lie was arrested by Sheriff Clark?
' ; A Yes,
3 : Q Did you know Alexander Browu?
- pE .
3 3 A Yes. :
] ] Q Did you know that he was arrested by S heriff Clark?
3
’ . K A Yes,
b . N
- E . . .
3 3 K Q Do you know whether those prople werce engaged in voter N
! P
’? - registration activities in Dallas County ? &;
0 A Yes, 1do,
' Q What effect did thnse arrests have on the Negro cormmunity ?
]
: 1 Mr, Pitts: Objection,
. 3 i
’j Judge Thoinas® Sustained. *
b
; Mr, Doar: Exception,
h .:i .
g i Mr, Doar: Have 3 0u been working in voter registration activi-
u .
: 4
," F’ 4
2]
4 E ,
o ) -
1
3
¢
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.
ties in Selma this surmer?
A I didn't hear vou, -
Q {Mr. Doar coutinuing) Have you been working in voter regis -
tration aciivities in Selma this .summcr? ' BN
A Yes, -
Judge' Thomas Any Re Dircct?
Mr. MclL.eod: No questions, your Honor.
Judge Thoiaé: Thark you very much, Yau may go,
FATHER MAURICE OULLETT, being first duly
sworn tu speak the :ruti:. tre whule truth; and nv.;t.hmg but the
truth, testiited as foil »ws-
"DIRECT EXAMINATION @

By Mr. Doar

Q Will you t»1l the Court your full name, please?
A Father Maurie Qullest.

Q What is your race?

A White,

Q Are yoiut a Catbcelic priest? .

A Yes; [ am,




